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Terry-Croker House
1020 Mars Hill Road
Acworth, Cobb County, Georgia

Architectural Description

The Terry-Croker house is a one-story structure located just northeast of the intersection
of two two-lane roads in western Cobb County near the Paulding County line. Estimated
dates of construction vary from c. 1850 to 1880." The house was in use as a residence
until mid-2005 when it was vacated. The original gabled dwelling was an “L” shape,
approximately 20 feet by 28 feet wide on the north-south elevation and approximately 14
feet by 18 feet on the east wing (see Figure 1). An approximately 14-foot square gabled
wing was added prior to 1975 to the northwest elevation to form a “T” shape. Several
exterior additions appear to have been made since 1975, and the interior was also
remodeled extensively. A 20-foot by 14-foot gabled addition projects from the northeast
corner and a 10-foot square gabled addition extends from the north elevation; these two
additions are connected by wood decking, 8 feet by 13 feet, accessing an exterior
entrance. In addition, a gabled projection with a six-over-six double-hung sash window
rises from this elevation to provide light to the loft space constructed on the interior.
Shed-roof additions fill the southeast (13 feet by 7 feet) and southwest (approximately
14-foot square) corners of the structure. A 6-foot square gable-front porch supported by
brackets was inserted west of the chimney, and triangular windows were placed on either
side of the chimney in the gable end. A second chimney noted in the 1975 Bicentennial
Cobb County Survey on the east elevation no longer remains, and a rectangular opening
has been cut into this elevation.

The original foundation, still visible in various areas, was probably brick or brick piers.
A concrete block foundation now supports the entire structure and also serves as the base
for the extant chimney on the south elevation. The wood-frame building is sheathed in
replacement vertical board with a wood stringcourse running above the windows.
Window supports are wood, and the six-over-six double hung windows have aluminum
framing.” The remaining chimney has been covered in stucco. The roof covering is
asphalt shingle.

The interior of the structure was extensively remodeled, probably after 1983. All original
interior features appear to have been removed, including doors, flooring, and fireplace
surrounds. Very few original features appear to remain. The original flooring and doors
were removed. A loft and stairway were built into the main section of the house, and the
house has been partitioned into hallways, bathrooms and bedrooms.

'"The Historic Cobb County Bicentennial Project, completed in 1974 — 1975, dates the house to ¢. 1850,
and the Cobb County Tax Record dates the house to 1880. While the family owned the land as early as
1853, the house was probably constructed several years later.

* The six-over-six double-hung sash windows also appear to be replacement, although this is
unsubstantiated.



The setting of the Terry-Croker House is in transition from a rural landscape to one
marked by recent and on-going clustered residential development. The dwelling is sited
on a rise and set back slightly from the road, and there is a side gravel drive and rear
parking area. A small modern garage is located to the east of the house and is clad in
similar exterior siding as the main structure. Now on five acres, the vicinity extending to
the east of the house remains wooded.

Therefore, there has been a loss of integrity of setting, design, materials, workmanship,
feeling and association of the structure. The dwelling is now located on a much smaller
parcel from the original tract and the neighborhood is marked by recent development
both of which have diminished its integrity of setting. In addition, virtually no historic
materials remain of the original building,” which has also been altered significantly by
several additions, thereby compromising its integrity of design, materials, workmanship,
feeling, and association.

Historical Narrative

The Terry-Croker property is significant for its over century-long occupation — from the
mid-to-late nineteenth century to late-twentieth century— with the Noah Terry and
Thomas Croker families, long-time residents and farmers of the area.

Located in western Cobb County, the house is sited near the Red Rock community to the
south and the Cobb County/Paulding County line to the west. The parcel was originally
part of the 1832 Cherokee Land Lottery of the 20" District, Second Section. In this
district, land was divided into 160-acre land lots. Land Lot 264 was drawn by Sen. James
Russell, Peurifoy’s, Henry (see Figure 2).

In 1855, Noah Terry (1814-1886) purchased three-quarters of Land Lot 264 comprising
nearly 120 acres from Aaron S. Smith.* Approximately 70 of these acres in the eastern
half of the land lot were deeded to Thomas F. (1847-1921), son of Noah and his wife
Martha, in 1886.> In February, 1913, Thomas Terry conveyed five acres in the northwest
to Noah B. and sold the remaining 64 2 acres to John W. Pyron later that year.” Pyron
deeded this parcel to T. J. Croker six years later in 1919. By 1975, Bertha Croker, an
unmarried daughter of Thomas and his wife, Martha, was living in the house, then on five
acres. With her death in 1983, the property was sold out of the family.

Thomas F. Terry farmed cotton and also operated a general store located across the street
and slightly to the north of the house, near Ford’s Road. This commercial area was
referred to as Terry Town due to the store which supplied a wide variety of general
merchandise to local residents who could trade, barter or purchase on credit goods they

# Some original timbers may be in the attic, although the date of these has not been confirmed. Bricks may
also remain from the chimney, although these have been covered in stucco.

* Reference to this transaction is made in Deed Book II, Page 249, dated November 28, 1906, although the
indenture recorded was made on January 11, 1855.

5 Reference to this transaction is made in Deed Book EE, Page 767, dated November 12, 19006, although the
indenture was made on April 5, 1886.

% Noah B. was probably the son of Thomas F. and Elizabeth.



needed.” The building was demolished about 1999. Terry and his wife had eight
children, of which some were named Noah, Alfred, William, Carbossa, Pierce, Ada and
Mary.

As noted earlier, Thomas J. Croker purchased the property from John Pyron in 1919.
Prior to this time, Croker was already established as a farmer in Cobb County. He was
married to Martha A. and had three children, Claudia O., Eliza Bertha (1990-1983) and
James R.
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